
General PAC/minutes (22 March 06)  

 - 1 - 
 

 
  

  SOUTH  OF  MARKET  PROJECT  AREA  COMMITTEE  

 1035 FOLSOM STREET •  SAN FRANCISCO, CA  •  94103 

415.487.2166 Fax 415. 487.2169 • website: http://www.sompac.com 
Advisory body to the San Francisco Redevelopment Agency 

  
 

 
GENERAL PAC 

Monday March 20, 2006 
6:00 PM 

 
        

 
Presiding Chair  (6:12 PM) 
Antoinetta Stadlman 

 
Roll Call by Secretary  (6:12 PM) 
Present: John Elberling, Tracy Everwine/Urban Solutions, Henry Karnilowicz (\7:45 PM), 
Don Marcos/SOM Employment Center, Angus McCarthy (/6:57 PM), Wilma Parker, Charles 
Range/SOM Health Center, Antoinetta Stadlman, Mark Swenson and David Wilbur/SF 
Tenants Union 
                     
Absent: Tammy Alpers, Marty Cerles, Sharon Grace, Dipak Patel and Nasir Patel 
 
Staff: Marcia Ban and Karen Nolan 

 
Agency Staff: Mike Grisso, Cathy Pickering and Erin Carson/PIDC 
 
Guests: See Attached Guest Sign In Sheet 
 
Chairs Report (6:12 PM) 
 
Approval of Minutes (6:13 PM) 
Motion: “To approve the minutes of the February 2006 General PAC meeting.” 
 
Vote:  Yes: 9  No: 0  Abstain: 0  Motion Passes  

   
Approval of Agenda  (6:14 PM) 
1,2,3,4,5,6,7,8,9,10 
Motion: “To approve the agenda order as is.” 
 
Vote:  Yes: 9  No: 0  Abstain: 0  Motion Passes 

 
Announcement of next General PAC meeting 
Ms. Stadlman announced that the next General PAC meeting would be on Monday April 
17th, 2006 at 6:00 PM. 
 
 
 
 



General PAC/minutes (22 March 06)  

 - 2 - 
 

 
Agenda Item 7. New PAC Elections by Mike Grisso (6:15 PM) 
Mr. Grisso announced that the new PAC elections would be held on May 3rd at the 
SOMPAC office. He stated that a notification would go out to all members on Friday 
explaining the procedures and he would appreciate members spreading the word about the 
elections. The notices will explain who is eligible to vote, where the election would be held, 
what to do in order to be a candidate for a seat on the PAC and all other information 
regarding the election. There will be a pre-election meeting on April 6th at 1035A Folsom 
Street at 6:00 p.m. 
 
Mr. Wilbur referred to requirements for CBO’s and wanted to know what is required for a 
CBO to be eligible for a seat. Mr. Grisso stated that CBO’s are eligible if they are 
headquartered or have an office in the Project Area, or if they have a majority of their clients 
in the Project Area. If a CBO is eligible, they can run for a seat and designate one person 
from the organization to vote. CBO’s can only vote for other CBO’s. Residents, property 
owners and business owners can vote for all categories. 
 
Mr. Grisso reiterated that the Redevelopment Agency does not think this election should 
take place. He announced that from a policy standpoint, there should be no elections now. It 
is not in accordance with California Redevelopment Law. He referred to the new seat for a 
Bessie Carmichael parent and stated that the seat would be considered a CBO. Mr. 
Swenson wanted to know who decided that a parent from Bessie Carmichael would be 
considered a CBO. Mr. Grisso stated that the City Attorney and the Agency made the 
determination based on Supervisor Daly’s ill-conceived resolution. Ms. Parker commented 
that with the Bessie Carmichael seat being considered a CBO, one-third of the PAC would 
be CBO’s. She stated that one could argue that a Bessie Carmichael parent represents the 
school so therefore the school should be considered a business seat. Mr. Grisso agreed 
with Ms. Parker but stated that the Agency felt that the only logical category is a CBO. 
 
Mr. Range wanted to know if someone voted for more categories than they are permitted, 
would the vote be nullified. Mr. Grisso stated that the Agency is not handling the election; 
the Department of Elections is conducting the election. He stated that you would only 
receive a ballot for the categories you are registered to vote in. In order to register you must 
be a resident, property owner or business owner in the Project Area, you must be 18-years-
old and you must have lived within the boundaries of the Project Area for 30 days. Mr. 
Grisso stated that the Department of Elections would be at the informational meeting on 
April 6th to answer any questions and the last day to register as a candidate for a seat is 
April 12th. Ms. Parker stated that notices should be posted all over the neighborhood for 
everyone to see and be aware of the elections. Mr. Grisso stated that the Department of 
elections says to mail the notices. 

 
Agenda Item 6. Redevelopment Agency Report by Mike Grisso (6:32 PM) 
a. Housing Developments 
Mr. Grisso announced that he was happy to see many PAC members at the Plaza 
Apartments grand opening ceremony. He mentioned the testimonials given by residents and 
how happy they are to be in the neighborhood. Mr. Range wanted to know if there is a 
breakdown of the residents (previous Plaza returnee’s, people in treatment, homeless, etc.). 
Staff would provide a breakdown for members to review. 
 
Ms. Parker commented that she attended the grand opening and wanted to know how 
many offenders were living at the Plaza. One man told her that he was an offender and she 
was surprised because we had been told in the past that there would be no offenders placed 



General PAC/minutes (22 March 06)  

 - 3 - 
 

in the Plaza. Ms. Carson stated that there were no offenders living in the Plaza. Mr. Marcos 
stated that he toured the Plaza and found it to be uplifting to see such a nice building on 6th 
Street but he would like to see Bindlestiff receive full support and become operational with a 
full marquee in the front of the theatre. 
 
Mr. Karnilowicz wanted to know what the full budget was for the Plaza Apartments. Ms. 
Carson stated that it would be 5-6 months before the final figures are in. Mr. Karnilowicz 
wanted to know how soon we could expect to see the Northeast Credit Union up and 
running. Ms. Carson explained that the tenant improvements must be done first and this 
would take approximately six months. PIDC and Urban Solutions would be providing some 
funding to help with the tenant improvements. Ms. Parker questioned the Planning 
Department notice that stated antennas would be placed on the building. Ms. Carson 
explained that the infrastructure for a certain number of antennas was included in the design 
of the building and this was done in such a way as to make the antennas invisible to anyone 
passing by.  
b. Other Developments 
Nothing to report at this time. 

 
Agenda Item 8. Hugo Hotel by Antoinetta Stadlman (6:46 PM) 
Mr. Range announced that he made this motion at the Housing Committee with the intent of 
the Agency utilizing the resources put into place by the Plan Amendment to address the 
blight at the Hugo Hotel site. At the request of Ms. Parker, Mr. Grisso reviewed the 
conditions of eminent domain on 6th Street. Mr. Karnilowicz stated that we should give the 
owner a chance to improve the property or sell it. The problem is that it has sat vacant for 19 
years while the owner has done nothing so we need to move on this. 
 
Mr. Range stated that this site has been discussed for many years at the PAC. We passed 
the Plan Amendment to put a plan in motion to revitalize this area and we need to deal with 
this particular site. He wondered why we went through all the years of work to put the Plan 
Amendment in place and then allow this blighted property to remain as it is. Mr. Wilbur 
stated that he would support this recommendation but would like to see the artwork on the 
building preserved. Ms. Parker stated that she would like to see someone other than the 
Agency develop this site. If the Agency develops it we may have another Plaza on our 
hands, which the Mayor would take for housing homeless. Mr. Range made a motion and 
Mr. Karnilowicz seconded the motion. 
Motion: “The PAC recommends that the Redevelopment Agency move with all of the 
resources necessary to implement the Plan Amendment with regard to the Hugo Hotel.” 
 
A roll call vote was taken. 
 
Those voting Yes: John Elberling/GP/TODCO, Tracy Everwine/Urban Solutions, Henry 
Karnilowicz, Don Marcos/SOM Employment Center, Charles Range/SOM Health 
Center, Antoinetta Stadlman, Mark Swenson and David Wilbur/SF Tenants Union 
 
Those voting No: Wilma Parker 
 
Those Abstaining: Angus McCarthy 
 
Vote:  Yes: 8  No: 1  Abstain: 1  Motion Passes 
 
 
 



General PAC/minutes (22 March 06)  

 - 4 - 
 

Agenda Item 9. SOMPAC Redevelopment Housing Policy Mix by John Elberling  
(7:00 PM) 
Mr. Elberling presented the Housing Policy Mix. He referred to the SRO hotels and stated 
that if a property has supportive services such as the Plaza is offering, they should 
guarantee funding for these services. He referred to any new affordable SRO housing and 
stated that this type of housing should be built in the South of Market but not in the Project 
Area. This area is already inundated with SRO housing. Mr. McCarthy commented that a 
new SRO development is currently in the works for 6th Street and we could not stop what the 
market would bear. Mr. Elberling stated that this new development is a market rate project 
and the only problem he could see is that there will be 8 parking spots for an 83 unit building 
that could cause parking problems for the area. The architect for this project made a 
presentation to the Housing Committee on March 6th. 
 
Mr. Elberling referred to any new working class or family housing and stated that we should 
continue developing this type of housing for families but they should not be restricted to 
those requiring supportive housing. The undeveloped lot located at 474 Natoma Street 
should be developed as affordable ownership housing. 
 
Mr. Elberling referred to housing for seniors and the disabled and stated that we should 
continue to focus development on the Fourth Street corridor to ensure a safe environment 
for these vulnerable people. Mr. Grisso stated that you should just state in the document 
that 6th Street is not appropriate for seniors or the disabled. Mr. Elberling stated that he 
would like to keep the document positive and this is why he stated we should focus on 4th 
Street for this population. 
 
Mr. Elberling referred to market-rate SRO housing and stated that we should encourage 
development of market-rate SRO housing to ensure diversity in the area. Mr. Grisso stated 
that he applauds the intent of encouraging market-rate SRO housing but he thinks stating “a 
reasonable amount” is not good, it is too vague; you need a target amount. This is not the 
right choice of words. He stated that the document should state that each market-rate SRO 
development should be reviewed and that it should be capped at some point. Mr. Elberling 
pointed out that this was made vague on purpose as this category of housing is still new. 
 
Mr. Marcos stated that he does not recall any priority for SOMA residents or a way to assist 
the lowest wage earners to qualify for the affordable housing that becomes available. Mr. 
Elberling referred to the next section that states we should direct as much of the new 
affordable housing developments to existing residents. The policy reiterates what is in the 
Plan Amendment. Mr. Marcos stated that he does not see this as a real policy if you are not 
going to do what it says. He stated that there are many low-income wage earners that do 
not qualify for housing at 50%, 80% or 100% of AMI. We should be assisting these people to 
increase their earning power so that they could qualify for the housing developed in this 
area. Mr. Elberling stated that there are organizations to assist people with such things as 
matching funds for down payments, credit counseling to help people get their credit in order 
to be able to qualify as well as mortgage education and social workers to assist people 
through the process of obtaining a mortgage loan. The problem is that there is no 
organization in the South of Market providing these services. 
 
Mr. Marcos would like to see changes to the document that would assist those at the lowest 
end of the income spectrum. Mr. Elberling suggested that we could add something 
encouraging MOCD to fund assistance programs to help people qualify. We could add 
something that makes the low-income housing affordable to the lowest-income households. 



General PAC/minutes (22 March 06)  

 - 5 - 
 

Mr. Marcos wanted to see programs developed that would help people increase their 
income to the 80% AMI levels so they could qualify for higher-income housing. 
 
There was a discussion regarding the overall document and changes or additions that 
members would like to see. It was agreed that Mr. Elberling would incorporate the changes 
and bring the updated document to next month’s meeting. 
 

 
Agenda Item 10. Reports by Committee Chairs (8:10 PM) 
Nothing to report at this time. 

 
Public Comment (8:10 PM) 
Rudy Corpuz introduced himself and stated that he is a long-term South of Market resident. 
He runs a violence prevention program for youth at the Recreation Center, funded by DCYF. 
He stated that there are approximately 2500 youth in the South of Market and there is a real 
need for a community center for the youth. Mr. Corpuz stated that he was told this is the 
group he should speak to about this and he wanted to know where to go from here as he 
would like to see a center that serves youth from 5-25 of all nationalities. 
 
Mr. Elberling stated that the need for a community center serving youth came up about 5 
years ago and there was a survey done. He stated that it would be good to look at the 
survey and see where things stand as a starting point. He commented that the Ark on 
Howard Street had big plans for a youth center a few years ago but does not know what 
happened. 

 
Meeting Adjourned (8:15 PM) 

 
 

Antoinetta Stadlman 
Chair 

 


